
 

AGENDA 

WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 

MONDAY, AUGUST 25, 2025 AT 6:00 PM 

     MUNICIPAL BUILDING - 150 EAST MONROE STREET 

WYTHEVILLE, VA 24382 
 

1. INVOCATION - VICE-MAYOR CANDICE N. JOHNSON 

2. CALL TO ORDER — MAYOR BETH A. TAYLOR 

3. ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM — MAYOR BETH A. TAYLOR 

4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - COUNCILWOMAN HOLLY E. ATKINS 

5. 7:00 P.M. RECESS (if necessary) 

6. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (requires motion and roll call vote) 

7. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Minutes of the work session and regular meeting of August 11, 2025, and the work 
session of August 12, 2025 (requires motion and vote) 

8. CITIZENS' PERIOD 

9. PUBLIC HEARINGS, REQUESTS, RESOLUTIONS, COUNCIL DECISIONS 

A. Consider the request of George Wythe High School for traffic control to conduct 
a Homecoming Parade on Wednesday, September 17, 2025, at 6:00 p.m. 

1. Staff Report/Presentation by Assistant Town Manager Elaine Holeton 

2. Consideration by the Town Council to approve the request of George Wythe High 
School for traffic control to conduct a Homecoming Parade on Wednesday, September 
17, 2025, at 6:00 p.m. (requires motion and vote) 

B. Consider the reappointment of Sherrie Parks to the Wytheville Redevelopment 
and Housing Authority (term expires September 8, 2025); and, consider the 
appointment of a new member to the Wytheville Redevelopment and Housing 
Authority to fill the expiring term of Jack Quesenberry (term expires September 
8, 2025) 

1. Staff Report/Presentation by Interim Town Manager Sherry Corvin 

2. Consideration by the Town Council to reappoint Sherrie Parks to the Wytheville 
Redevelopment and Housing Authority (new term expires September 8, 
2029) (requires motion and vote) 



3. Consideration by the Town Council to appoint a new member to the Wytheville 
Redevelopment and Housing Authority (new term expires September 8, 
2029) (requires motion and vote) 

C. Consider an appointment to the Wytheville Tree Advisory Committee to fill the 
unexpired term of James Cohen (term expires May 14, 2027) or schedule a Meet 
and Greet Session for September 8, 2025, at 5:45 p.m. 

1. Staff Report/Presentation by Interim Town Manager Sherry Corvin 

2. Consideration by the Town Council to appoint a member to the Wytheville Tree 
Advisory Committee to fill the unexpired term of James Cohen (term expires May 14, 
2027) or schedule a Meet and Greet Session for September 8, 2025, at 5:45 
p.m. (requires motion and vote) 

D. Consider the appointment of a youth member to the Wytheville Recreation 
Commission (term expires August 1, 2026) 

1. Staff Report/Presentation by Interim Town Manager Sherry Corvin 

2. Consideration by the Town Council to appoint a youth member to the Wytheville 
Recreation Commission (term expires August 1, 2026) (requires motion and vote) 

E. Consider an appointment to the Wytheville Economic Development Authority to 
fill the expired term of Zach Cooley (term expired December 12, 2024) 

1. Staff Report/Presentation by Interim Town Manager Sherry Corvin 

2. Consideration by the Town Council to appoint a member to the Wytheville Economic 
Development Authority to fill the expired term of Zach Cooley (new term expires 
December 12, 2028) (requires motion and vote) 

F. Review and approval of various Department of Housing and Community 
Development (DHCD) documents for the Monroe Street Housing Production 
Project 

1. Staff Report/Presentation by Assistant Town Manager Elaine Holeton 

2. Consideration by the Town Council to approve various Department of Housing and 
Community Development (DHCD) documents for the Monroe Street Housing 
Production Project (requires motion and roll call vote) 

G. Review of the Electronic Meeting Participation Policy for Fiscal Year 2025-26 

1. Staff Report/Presentation by Interim Town Manager Sherry Corvin 

2. Consideration to adopt the Electronic Meeting Participation Policy for Fiscal Year 
2025-26 (requires motion and roll call vote) 

10. REPORTS 

A. Upcoming Meetings - DEPUTY CLERK LAUREN BEDWELL 



11. OTHER BUSINESS 

A. Council Member Time 

B. Miscellaneous 

12. CLOSED MEETING 

A. Closed Meeting pursuant to § 2.2-3711 (A.) (1.) Discussion regarding the Town 
Manager position; pursuant to § 2.2-3711 (A.) (3.) Discussion regarding the 
acquisition of real property for a public purpose; pursuant to § 2.2-3711 (A.) (8.) 
Consultation with legal counsel regarding specific legal matters (requires 
motion and vote)  

B. Certification of Closed Meeting (requires motion and roll call vote) 

13. ADJOURNMENT 



7-A



 

MINUTES 

TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

MONDAY, AUGUST 11, 2025 AT 5:30 PM 

     COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 150 EAST MONROE STREET  

WYTHEVILLE, VA 24382 

 

1. UNAPPROVED MINUTES 

Persons Present: 

Mayor Beth Taylor, Vice-Mayor Candice Johnson, Councilwoman Cathy Pattison, 
Councilwoman Holly Atkins, Councilman Joseph Hand, Jr., Interim Town Manager Sherry 
Corvin, Assistant Town Manager Elaine Holeton, Deputy Clerk Lauren Bedwell, Assistant 
Computer Operations Manager Jeff Hooper, Sergeant Chastity Russell, Lucas Mabry 

Persons Absent:  

None 

2. RE: ITEMS TO BE DISCUSSED 

A. Approval of Agenda  

Mayor Taylor advised that the first item on the agenda is the Approval of Agenda, 
and this required a motion and approval by the Council. She inquired if there was a 
motion to approve the Work Session agenda.  

Motion made by Councilwoman Pattison, Seconded by Councilman Hand, Jr. She 
inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was 
approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea: Councilman 
Hand, Jr., Councilwoman Pattison, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Atkins, Vice-Mayor 
Johnson.  

B. Meet and Greet Session 

Mr. Lucas Mabry - Wytheville Recreation Commission Youth Member 

Mr. Lucas Mabry attended the meeting to hold a Meet and Greet Session with the 
Town Council to be considered for appointment as a youth member of the Wytheville 
Recreation Commission. Mayor Taylor proceeded to ask Mr. Mabry a series of 
questions regarding his personal interest in serving on the Recreation Commission. 
Mr. Mabry stated that he is going into his sophomore year of high school and that he 
has lived in Wytheville all his life. He noted that he is familiar with the Recreation 
Commission, and that he would like to help improve the Parks and Recreation 
programs. Mr. Mabry commented that he has participated in most of the Parks and 
Recreation League sports. He stated that he is prepared to serve on the Recreation 



Commission, and that he would like to help improve the Parks and Recreation 
Department for everyone to enjoy. Mayor Taylor inquired if Mr. Mabry had any 
questions for the Council. Mr. Mabry advised that he did not have any questions. The 
Council thanked Mr. Mabry for his willingness to serve on the Recreation 
Commission.  

3. RE: ADJOURNMENT  

There being no further business to be discussed, the Work Session was adjourned. (5:37 
p.m.) 

 

                ________________________________________ 
                 Sharon G. Corvin, CMC, Interim Town Manager 

 

________________________________________ 
Lauren E. Bedwell, Deputy Clerk 



 

MINUTES 

WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 

MONDAY, AUGUST 11, 2025 AT 6:00 PM 

     MUNICIPAL BUILDING - 150 EAST MONROE STREET 

WYTHEVILLE, VA 24382 
 

1. UNAPPROVED MINUTES 

MEMBERS PRESENT: 
Mayor Beth Taylor, Vice-Mayor Candice Johnson, Councilwoman Cathy Pattison, 
Councilwoman Holly Atkins, Councilman Joseph Hand, Jr.  

MEMBERS ABSENT: 
None 

OTHERS PRESENT: 
Interim Town Manager Sherry Corvin, Assistant Town Manager Elaine Holeton, Town 
Attorney Paul Cassell, Deputy Clerk Lauren Bedwell, Director of Human Resources Laura 
Heldreth, Police Chief Joel Hash, Assistant Computer Operations Manager Jeff Hooper, 
Landscape Architect/Grants Administrator John Woods, Police Sergeant Chastity Russell, 
Blake Caldwell, Sara Roberson, Jenni Lauria, Bill Leighton, Nancy Martin, Kirk 
Chamberlain, Mr. & Mrs. Arthur Johnson 

2. RE: CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Taylor called the meeting to order. 

3. RE: ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM 

Mayor Taylor established that a quorum of Council members was present. 

4. RE: PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Councilman Hand.  

5. RE: 7:00 P.M. RECESS 

Mayor Taylor advised that for informational purposes only, the agenda includes a 7:00 
p.m. scheduled recess. 

6. RE: APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is the Approval of Agenda. She inquired if 
there was a motion to approve the agenda as presented.  

Motion made by Councilwoman Pattison, Seconded by Vice-Mayor Johnson. Mayor Taylor 
inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was 



approved with the following results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea: Vice-Mayor Johnson, 
Councilwoman Atkins, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Pattison, Councilman Hand, Jr. 

7. RE: CONSENT AGENDA 

A. RE: MINUTES OF THE WORK SESSION AND REGULAR MEETING OF JULY 28, 
2025, AND THE WORK SESSION OF JULY 29, 2025 

Mayor Taylor presented the consent agenda consisting of the minutes of the work 
session and the regular meeting of July 28, 2025, and the work session of July 29, 
2025. She inquired if there was a motion to approve the consent agenda as 
presented.  

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Pattison. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the 
motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: 
Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison, 
Councilwoman Atkins, Councilman Hand, Jr. 

8. RE: CITIZENS' PERIOD 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is Citizens' Period. She stated that there 
are citizens listed on the sign-in sheet who would like to address the Council during 
Citizens' Period. She requested Mr. Blake Caldwell come to the podium and state his 
name and address for the recording of the minutes.  

Mr. Blake Caldwell was recognized and stated that he lives on Walnut Road in Wytheville. 
He noted that he is attending the meeting as a representative of the residents on Walnut 
Road. Mr. Caldwell advised that he would like to address the Council regarding the culvert 
issues they face during heavy rain events. He commented that the culvert and Walnut 
Road will be completely submerged at times during heavy rainfall. Mr. Caldwell stated that 
the water rises, at least, to knee height when it floods on their road, which makes it nearly 
impassable for pedestrian traffic to cross and dangerous for those driving sedans. He 
noted that there is only one road leading to most of the houses on Walnut Road, therefore, 
some residents who work must leave their jobs early because they were notified that the 
road has almost flooded. Mr. Caldwell advised that the Walnut Road residents have 
collectively decided to come before the Town Council to request a new culvert that can 
withstand the heavy rainfall and flooding that they have endured recently. He commented 
that these issues with the culvert and flooding have increased over the last few years. Mr. 
Caldwell noted that they have had to call Town staff multiple times to dig them out during 
the floods. He stated that more damage is created each time Town staff must come and 
dig them out, and that they have already had the road patched twice due to the damage. 
Mr. Caldwell advised that the Walnut Road residents would be very grateful if the Council 
would agree to have the Town assist in replacing the culvert. He stated they understand 
that their property is a natural floodplain, however, they still need to be able to enter and 
exit Walnut Road during these weather events. Mayor Taylor inquired if Walnut Road is 
privately owned. Mr. Caldwell stated that is correct, but they are not asking the Town to 
help maintain or repair the road. He noted they are only asking for assistance from the 
Town for the culvert.  



Ms. Sara Roberson was recognized and stated that she lives on Walnut Road in 
Wytheville. She noted that she, also, would like to address the Council regarding the 
culvert issues on Walnut Road and the collapse of the road during heavy rain events. Ms. 
Roberson advised that she called Public Works Director Kevin Hackler to report significant 
damage to the road. She commented that she sent Director Hackler pictures of the 
damage that has been made to the most recent road patching by recent flooding. Ms. 
Roberson noted that Director Hackler came out the very next day to pour concrete into the 
damaged area of the road. She commented that she is not sure when the culvert was 
replaced last, however, they do know that the Town was responsible for installing the 
culvert. Ms. Roberson advised that there is a large amount of trash that flows from town 
and gathers onto their property. She stated they pay Town taxes and are cleaning up the 
Town's trash, but they are not even offered trash pickup. Ms. Roberson continued to 
express her concerns regarding the issues they face with the culvert and flooding. 
Councilman Hand advised that this is a difficult situation, since this is a private road and it 
is the owners' responsibility to maintain. Ms. Roberson stated that the culvert was installed 
by the Town. Vice-Mayor Taylor inquired when dialogue was last held regarding this 
matter. Mayor Taylor commented that she thinks it was within the last two months, and that 
she thinks it was discussed in the office and not at a Council meeting. Assistant Town 
Manager Holeton commented she does not think there has been official dialogue about 
this matter. She noted that Staff will check into this further and bring more information back 
to the Council. Ms. Roberson noted that she is worried the road may wash out completely 
in the next rain event if the Town does not act on this quickly. She noted that complaints 
have been made to the Town several times regarding these issues. Ms. Roberson advised 
she was told that Town staff would take care of these issues during drier months, however, 
nothing has ever been done to solve these issues.  

Ms. Jenni Lauria was recognized and stated that she lives on Walnut Road. She 
addressed the Council regarding the culvert and flooding issues on Walnut Road. Ms. 
Lauria noted that she has called the Town and complained about these issues to Public 
Works Director Hackler, as well. She commented that she still has texts between herself 
and other Walnut Road residents regarding what she was told by Town staff about their 
culvert issues. Councilwoman Atkins inquired if any of the residents could send pictures or 
videos of the culvert and the damage that need to be repaired to Interim Town Manager 
Corvin. Ms. Roberson stated she would email them to Interim Town Manager Corvin. Vice-
Mayor Johnson commented that she would like to see the pictures and videos once Interim 
Town Manager Corvin receives them.  

Mr. Bill Leighton was recognized and stated that he lives on Walnut Road. He addressed 
the Council about flooding and the trash runoff they encounter on Walnut Road. Mr. 
Leighton noted that these issues have increased during the last year, and they would like a 
larger culvert or multiple culverts to be installed to help mitigate the trash collection and 
flooding issues. The Council thanked these citizens for their comments.  

RE: RECESS 

It was the consensus of the Council to recess the meeting. (6:19 p.m.)  

RE: RECONVENE  

It was the consensus of the Council to reconvene the meeting. (6:26 p.m.) 



9. RE: PRESENTATIONS TO TOWN COUNCIL 

A. RE: PRESENTATION REGARDING AUTHORIZATION TO APPLY FOR TWO 
VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (VDOT) GRANTS 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is a presentation by Landscape 
Architect/Grants Administrator John Woods regarding authorization to apply for two 
(2) Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT) Grants. Mr. Woods stated that in 
2023, the Town received funding through the VDOT Ready, Set, Go Grant for the 
Peppers Ferry Road Sidewalk Improvement Project. He noted that former Interim 
Town Manager Moore asked him to prepare grant applications for two additional 
projects, one being the Lithia Road Sidewalk Connector Project and the North 4th 
Street Pedestrian Improvements Project. Mr. Woods stated the Lithia Road Sidewalk 
Connector Project would connect East Main Street to the end of Community 
Boulevard. He then reviewed the construction details of this project with the Council. 
Mr. Woods noted that Hurt and Proffitt prepared the cost estimate for this project 
based on the current budget projections required by VDOT. He stated the total cost 
estimate for his project is $4,076,166, and, typically, Transportation Alternatives 
Grants are an 80/20 match. Mr. Woods advised that based on those guidelines, the 
Town's funding portion would be $1,576,166. He then discussed the reason this 
project's cost is a lot higher than similar past projects. Mayor Taylor inquired if the 
$1,576,166 is the total amount the Town will have to pay for this entire project. Mr. 
Woods stated that is correct. Councilman Hand noted that he is not in favor of this 
project, because of the location of this project being near the interstate. He 
commented that he would love to see a grant used for sidewalks in the downtown 
area, instead. Vice-Mayor Johnson stated she has interest in pursuing this project, so 
that people who are handicapped and must walk to work can access this area more 
easily. Discussion was held regarding how the location of this project was developed, 
and how people who are handicapped have been wanting sidewalks to connect so 
they can access more areas. Mr. Woods advised that if the Council decides to pursue 
this project, a resolution of support will be required by VDOT. Mayor Taylor inquired 
of Mr. Woods about whether this project could be included in the Fiscal Year 2026-27 
Budget. Mr. Woods stated that the grant funding, probably, would not be announced 
until early 2026, and the commitment would be for the following year for project 
design and engineering. A brief discussion continued regarding the timeline of the 
grant process for this project. 

Mr. Woods advised that he would now review the North 4th Street Pedestrian 
Improvements Project with the Council. He stated this project will extend sidewalks 
up North 4th Street to the Wytheville Commons Shopping Center, McDonalds and 
Northwinds Apartments. Mr. Woods noted this project would connect the Northwinds 
Apartments, along the south side of 4th Street, to a crosswalk at Fairview Road 
allowing more access for pedestrians. He commented that pedestrian crosswalk 
buttons would be added near the signals at Commonwealth Boulevard to make 
crossing North 4th Street safer. Councilwoman Atkins stated that she has some 
concerns about a crosswalk at Fairview Road and inquired if that crosswalk was 
recommended by VDOT. Mr. Woods advised that is where the VDOT traffic 
engineers recommended, based on the future reconfiguration at Holston Road. 
Discussion was held regarding how other options would potentially cause issues with 
the limited access highway, concerns about the crosswalks in this project and how 



this is not a walking friendly environment. Mr. Woods stated the budget for this 
project is based on typical conditions, and that the estimated cost of this project is 
$19,340,538. He noted that the only funding source that VDOT has for this project, 
which the Town is eligible for, is Revenue Sharing which is a 50/50 match. Mr. 
Woods advised that the Town's portion of funding for this project would be 
$9,670,269, based on the current estimate. Discussion was held regarding how a 
transit system could potentially be more beneficial than spending that amount of 
money on the North 4th Street Pedestrians Improvements Project. Vice-Mayor 
Johnson inquired of Mr. Woods regarding Virginia Breeze, and if he has any update 
regarding the progress of the transit station they proposed off Spring Street. Mr. 
Woods stated the last conversation he had with them was at the beginning of this 
year, and they were waiting to see if their budget would allow funding for that station. 
He advised that he would reach out to Virginia Breeze and ask them for an update. 
Vice-Mayor Johnson inquired if Mr. Woods must apply for these grants at the same 
time, or can he apply for them one at a time. Mr. Woods stated they have separate 
applications, and Staff can apply for them both, apply for just one or neither.  

A motion was made by Vice-Mayor Johnson and seconded by Councilwoman Atkins 
to authorize Landscape Architect/Grants Administrator John Woods to apply for a 
VDOT grant for the Lithia Road Sidewalk Connector Project. Mayor Taylor inquired if 
there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was approved 
with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea: Vice-Mayor Johnson, 
Councilwoman Atkins, Mayor Taylor. Voting Nay: Councilwoman Pattison, 
Councilman Hand, Jr. Councilman Hand stated that he thinks it is unfair to have Staff 
apply for a grant for a project for which the Town does not have the funds.  

Mayor Taylor inquired if there was a motion to authorize Landscape Architect/Grants 
Administrator John Woods to apply for a VDOT grant for the North 4th Street 
Pedestrian Improvements Project. There being no motion, the North 4th Street 
Pedestrian Improvements Project died.  

10. RE: PUBLIC HEARINGS, REQUESTS, RESOLUTIONS, COUNCIL DECISIONS 

A. RE: ORDINANCE NO. 1454 

Mayor Taylor presented Ordinance No. 1454, an ordinance amending and reenacting 
Ordinance No. 1428, an ordinance establishing the Housing Rehabilitation Zone, to 
add property located on Lexington Street, known as the Lexington Street Quadplex, 
(Tax Map Parcel #41A-1-129-8), in the Town of Wytheville, Virginia, on first and final 
reading. Assistant Town Manager Holeton stated that she discussed this topic with 
the Council at the last Work Session meeting. She noted that the Housing 
Rehabilitation Zone is an incentive to help with affordable housing. Assistant Town 
Manager Holeton advised that to approve this request, an ordinance is required to 
add this property to the Housing Rehabilitation Zone. She commented that the 
proposed request is for the construction of four (4), one (1) bedroom units, and that 
the approximate cost of the project is $500,000. Assistant Town Manager Holeton 
stated the value of the permit fees, which will be waived, is approximately $13,936. 
Vice-Mayor Johnson inquired whether the developers could continue with this project 
regardless of what the Council decides about waiving the permit fees. Assistant Town 
Manager Holeton noted that is correct. Councilwoman Atkins inquired about the 



measurements of the proposed location on Lexington Street, and if it was measured 
correctly. Assistant Town Manager Holeton advised that the measurements are 
correct. Mayor Taylor inquired if there was a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 1454, an 
ordinance amending and reenacting Ordinance No. 1428, an ordinance establishing 
the Housing Rehabilitation Zone, to add property located on Lexington Street, known 
as the Lexington Street Quadplex, (Tax Map Parcel #41A-1-129-8), in the Town of 
Wytheville, Virginia, on first and final reading.  

Motion made by Councilman Hand, Seconded by Councilwoman Pattison. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the 
motion was approved with the following voting results by roll call vote: Voting Yea: 
Councilman Hand, Jr., Councilwoman Pattison, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Atkins, 
Vice-Mayor Johnson. Ordinance No. 1454 was adopted on first and final reading.  

B. RE: WAIVER OF FEES REQUEST - DISTRICT III GOVERNMENTAL 
COOPERATIVE/WYTHE WHITE TOPPERS 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is to consider the request of District 
III/Wythe White Toppers for waiver of fees for use of the Elizabeth Brown Memorial 
Park Shelter on Thursday, September 4, 2025. Interim Town Manager Corvin stated 
that District III/Wythe White Toppers are eligible for waiver of fees, and that Parks 
and Recreation staff recommend that their application be approved. Mayor Taylor 
inquired if there was a motion to approve the request of District III/Wythe White 
Toppers for a waiver of fees for use of the Elizabeth Brown Memorial Park Shelter on 
Thursday, September 4, 2025. 

Motion made by Councilman Hand, Jr., Seconded by Vice-Mayor Johnson. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. Councilwoman Atkins 
stated that she wanted Town staff to make sure that the bathrooms were open and 
clean at the shelter for District III/Wythe White Toppers to be able to use. Interim 
Town Manager Corvin stated she would make sure that is taken care of. There being 
no further discussion, the motion was approved with the following voting in favor and 
there being no opposition: Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson, 
Councilwoman Pattison, Councilwoman Atkins, Councilman Hand, Jr.  

C. RE: REAPPOINTMENT - WYTHEVILLE BUILDING CODE APPEALS BOARD 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is to consider reappointing Mr. 
Donald Repass to the Wytheville Building Code Appeals Board (term expired July 26, 
2025). Interim Town Manager Corvin stated that Mr. Repass is eligible for 
reappointment, and that he has indicated that he would like to be reappointed if the 
Council desires. She noted this appointment will be for five (5) years and it will expire 
on July 26, 2030. It was the consensus of the Council to reappoint Mr. Donald 
Repass to the Wytheville Building Code Appeals Board for a five (5) year term (new 
term expires July 26, 2029). 

D. RE: APPOINTMENT - WYTHEVILLE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is to consider an appointment to the 
Wytheville Economic Development Authority (WEDA) to fill the expired term of 
Zachary Cooley (term expired December 12, 2024). Interim Town Manager Corvin 



stated that there is only one application for the Council to consider for appointment to 
the WEDA. She noted this position has been vacant for almost a year, so this term 
will expire on December 12, 2027, to keep the terms staggered. Vice-Mayor Johnson 
inquired if there is an urgency to fill this vacancy on the WEDA. Interim Town 
Manager Corvin stated that is correct, because this position has been vacant for 
almost a year. Councilwoman Atkins inquired if anyone knew the applicant, Mr. 
James Savesky. A brief discussion was held regarding whether the Council members 
knew Mr. Savesky, and if they would like to appoint him to the WEDA or schedule a 
Meet and Greet Session. 

A motion was made by Vice-Mayor Johnson and seconded by Councilwoman Atkins 
to schedule a Meet and Greet Session with Mr. James Savesky for Monday, August 
25, 2025, at 5:30 p.m., in the Council Chambers of the Municipal Building. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the 
motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: 
Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison, 
Councilwoman Atkins, Councilman Hand, Jr. 

11. RE: REPORTS 

A. RE: UPCOMING MEETINGS 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is upcoming meetings. Deputy Clerk 
Lauren Bedwell presented the upcoming meetings, as follows:  

1. The next regular scheduled Town Council Work Session will be held on Tuesday, 
August 12, 2025, at 4:00 p.m., in the Council Chambers. 

2. The Wytheville Tree Advisory Committee will meet on Thursday, August 14, 2025, 
at 8:30 a.m., in Conference Room A.  

3. The Wytheville Planning Commission will meet on Thursday, August 14, 2025, at 
6:00 p.m., in the Council Chambers. 

4. The Downtown Wytheville, Incorporated (DTW) Board of Directors will meet on 
Monday, August 18, 2025, at 5:30 p.m., at the DTW Office.  

5. The Wytheville Redevelopment and Housing Authority will meet on Wednesday, 
August 20, 2025, at 12:00 p.m., at the Housing Authority Office.  

6. The New River Regional Water Authority will meet on Thursday, August 21, 2025, 
at 10:00 a.m., at the Water Plant in Austinville.  

7. The next regular scheduled Wytheville Town Council meeting will be held on 
Monday, August 25, 2025, at 6:00 p.m., in the Council Chambers.  

12. RE: OTHER BUSINESS  

A. RE: COUNCIL MEMBER TIME 



Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is Council Member Time. She 
inquired if Councilman Hand had anything he would like to discuss during Council 
Member Time. Councilman Hand stated that he did not have anything to discuss 
during Council Member Time.  

Mayor Taylor inquired if Councilwoman Pattison had anything she would like to 
discuss during Council Member Time. Councilwoman Pattison stated that Wytheville 
Redevelopment and Housing Authority Executive Director Mr. Nick Martin has shown 
an interest in new housing projects in the Town of Wytheville. She noted that she is 
asking for a volunteer to work with her, Mr. Martin and Assistant Town Manager 
Holeton, to further discuss the idea of new projects for the Housing Authority. 
Councilman Hand inquired of Assistant Town Manager Holeton if it would be a 
conflict of interest for him to volunteer since he is a realtor. Assistant Town Manager 
Holeton advised that it would not be a conflict of interest. Councilman Hand stated 
that he would like to volunteer to work with them on this project.  

Mayor Taylor inquired if there has been any movement regarding the vacant house 
on Monroe Street. She stated that she believes the location is 640 Monroe Street. 
Vice-Mayor Johnson inquired about which house Mayor Taylor is referring to, 
because she thinks there are two houses on Monroe Street that are vacant. Mayor 
Taylor noted that it is right behind State Electric on Monroe Street. Assistant Town 
Manager Holeton advised that Building Official Spraker has been looking into the 
policy that the Town follows regarding these types of structures, and that he is in the 
process of working towards Code Enforcement on this matter. She noted that Staff 
will provide the Council with an update on this topic within the next week or two.  

Mayor Taylor stated that there have been several citizens addressing her regarding 
giving a shoutout to the Town of Wytheville Fire and EMS Department for their great 
work at a recent house fire on 20th Street. Vice-Mayor Johnson noted that they did 
an amazing job. Interim Town Manager Corvin advised that she sent an email and 
talked to Fire Chief Slemp about the house fire and thanked the crews of the Fire and 
EMS Department and the Police Department for their efforts with that fire.  

Mayor Taylor inquired if Councilwoman Atkins had anything that she would like to 
discuss during Council Member Time. Councilwoman Atkins inquired if Councilman 
Hand would like to elaborate on anything that was said to her previously, after the 
Work Session, since the Town Attorney is now present. Councilman Hand stated if 
he had anything to say to Councilwoman Atkins, personally, that he would say it to 
her. He commented that he does not have anything to say to her, at this time.  

Mayor Taylor inquired if Vice-Mayor Johnson had anything that she would like to 
discuss during Council Member Time. Vice-Mayor Johnson stated that she did not 
have anything to discuss during Council Member Time.  

13. RE: CLOSED MEETING 

A. RE: CLOSED MEETING PURSUANT TO § 2.2-3711 (A.) (1.) DISCUSSION 
REGARDING PERSONNEL ISSUES  



Mayor Taylor advised that it would now be necessary to go into a Closed Meeting 
pursuant to § 2.2-3711 (A.) (1.) Discussion regarding personnel issues. She inquired 
if there was a motion to go into a Closed Meeting.  

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Pattison. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the 
motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: 
Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison, 
Councilwoman Atkins, Councilman Hand, Jr. (7:22 p.m.) 

B. RE: CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED MEETING 

Mayor Taylor advised that it would now be necessary to certify the Closed Meeting. 
She noted that it would also be necessary to reconvene into open session. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was a motion to certify the Closed Meeting held pursuant to § 
2.2-3711 (A.) (1.) Discussion regarding personnel issues and that only public 
business matters were heard, discussed or considered by Council.  

Motion made by Councilwoman Pattison, Seconded by Councilman Hand, Jr. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the 
motion was approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea: 
Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Atkins, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Pattison, 
Councilman Hand, Jr. (8:31 p.m.)  

C. RE: APPOINTMENT OF TOWN MANAGER 

A motion was made by Councilwoman Pattison and seconded by Councilman Hand, 
Jr. to appoint Thad Jablonski as the Town Manager effective as of the date on the 
employment contract and to authorize the Mayor to sign the contract on behalf of the 
Town Council. Mayor Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. 
Councilwoman Atkins inquired if Town Attorney Cassell could state the amount the 
new Town Manager’s salary will be. Town Attorney Cassell stated that the salary in 
the employment contract is $184,000 per year. Councilwoman Atkins noted that she 
believes Mr. Jablonski will do a fantastic job, based on his interviews, however, she is 
just not comfortable with the $184,000 salary. Vice-Mayor Johnson advised that she 
thinks Mr. Jablonski will do a great job, however, she is not comfortable with that 
salary based on the Town's population. Councilman Hand stated he is very excited 
about this opportunity, and he thinks this is the best move for the Town. He 
commented that he feels like this is going to be a great match. There being no further 
discussion, the motion was approved with the following voting results, by roll call 
vote: Councilman Hand, Jr., Councilwoman Pattison, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman 
Atkins, Vice-Mayor Johnson.  

The Town Council congratulated Mr. Jablonski on his appointment as Town 
Manager. Mayor Taylor stated that she is also excited to have the opportunity to work 
with such an accredited candidate with his background. She commented that she 
knew his present establishment would miss him. Councilwoman Pattison advised that 
she is looking forward to what she is going to call a new beginning with Mr. Jablonski. 
She noted that she is excited about this, and that she is ready to welcome Mr. 
Jablonski.  



14. RE: ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to be discussed, Mayor Taylor adjourned the meeting. 
(8:34 p.m.) 

                 
       Beth A. Taylor, Mayor 

 

         
Lauren E. Bedwell, Deputy Clerk 



 

MINUTES 

TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

TUESDAY, AUGUST 12, 2025 AT 4:00 PM 

     COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 150 EAST MONROE STREET  

WYTHEVILLE, VA 24382 

 

1. UNAPPROVED MINUTES 

Persons Present: 

Mayor Beth Taylor, Vice-Mayor Candice Johnson, Councilwoman Cathy Pattison (Arrived 
at 4:20 p.m.), Councilwoman Holly Atkins, Councilman Joseph Hand, Jr., Interim Town 
Manager Sherry Corvin, Assistant Town Manager Elaine Holeton, Town Attorney Paul 
Cassell, Chief Deputy Clerk Brandi Jones, Director of Public Utilities and Engineering Billy 
Anderson, Director of Parks and Recreation Josh Sharitz, Computer Operations Manager 
Ron Jude, Police Chief Joel Hash, Assistant Director of Public Utilities and Engineering 
Andrew Austin, Assistant Computer Operations Manager Jeff Hooper, Deputy Police Chief 
Bryan Bard, Police Sergeant Chastity Russell, Pretreatment Administrator Tony Keen, 
CHA Representative Stevie Steele 

Persons Absent: 

None 

2. RE: ITEMS TO BE DISCUSSED 

A. Approval of Agenda 

Mayor Taylor advised that the first item on the agenda is the Approval of Agenda, 
and this required a motion and approval by the Council.  

A motion was made by Vice-Mayor Johnson and seconded by Councilwoman Atkins 
to amend the agenda to add a Closed Meeting pursuant to § 2.2-3711 (A.) (1.) 
Discussion regarding personnel issues. Mayor Taylor inquired if there was any 
discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was approved with the 
following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman 
Atkins, Vice-Mayor Johnson. Voting Nay: Councilman Hand, Jr.  

B. Presentation regarding the Consent Order and conditions at the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is a presentation regarding the 
Consent Order and conditions at the Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) by CHA 
Representative Stevie Steele. Mr. Steele was recognized and stated that he is a 
Licensed Professional Engineer, and that he works for CHA Consulting, Incorporated, 
in Blacksburg, Virginia. He advised that CHA Consulting has prepared a detailed 



Preliminary Engineering Report regarding the conditions at the WWTP. Mr. Steele 
reviewed the Headworks Building, Screens and Grit Removal at the WWTP. He 
stated that the Headworks Asset is beyond its useful life service at 32 years, which is 
two (2) years longer than usual. Mr. Steele noted that the Submersible Drain Pumps 
at the Plant Drain Pump Station require frequent replacement, and that CHA’s 
analysis questions if it is sensible to continue replacing these pumps. He advised that 
a new Plant Drain Pump Station can be purchased after four (4) pump replacements. 
Mr. Steele commented that after CHA’s analysis, the recommendation is to replace 
the Plant Drain Pump Station. He stated that there are multiple critical components of 
the Primary Clarifiers, including drives and the chain and the flight that are beyond 
service life. Mr. Steele noted the Aeration Configuration and Controls can be 
optimized for ammonia removal and alkalinity recovery, however, the Aeration 
Blowers will need to be replaced for improved energy efficiency. He advised that 
there are several critical components of Secondary Clarifiers #1 and #2 that are, also, 
beyond service life including drives, submerged metals, etc. Mr. Steele commented 
that when it comes to disinfection, the chlorine and sulfur dioxide gas dissolution 
equipment have become obsolete, making the units unserviceable. He noted that the 
Nonpotable Water (NPW) Pump Station is below flood level. Mr. Steele advised that 
they are beginning to pay a lot of attention to all things that are flood related moving 
forward. He stated that the floating lids of the Primary and Secondary Digesters are 
leaking and that the guides are misaligned. Mr. Steele advised that they would like to 
refurbish the Belt Filter Press (BFP) and the control panel. He noted that when it 
comes to the electrical aspect, the Switchgear requires a manual transfer and that it 
is unsafe to access and/or work on. He commented that the Town's WWTP does not 
have a SCADA system for operational control and that the WWTP is relying on chart 
recorders and autodialers, which is technology from the 1970's. Mr. Steele noted that 
a SCADA system would be beneficial in helping operators run the WWTP remotely at 
times. He stated that he wants the Town Council to know that this will be a very large 
project, and that it is important that the Council understands what CHA is, or is not 
going to do and what the results will be. Mr. Steele then discussed a similar situation 
in the City of Galax regarding its Water Treatment Plant and its risk of failure. He 
stated that there are multiple funding mechanisms that align appropriately with the 
Town and this project. Mr. Steele then reviewed information to the Council regarding 
potential funding programs including the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 
Supplemental Grant Program; Congressionally Directed Spending; United States 
Department of Agriculture (USDA) Rural Development; Virginia Department of 
Environmental Quality (DEQ); Virginia Resources Authority (VRA) Pooled Financing; 
Mount Rogers Planning District Commission (MRPDC); and, the Southeast Rural 
Community Assistance Project, Inc. He stated that he would be happy to answer any 
questions that the Council may have at this time. Councilman Hand inquired of Mr. 
Steele regarding an estimated timeline for project completion from start to finish. Mr. 
Steele advised that he estimates this project will take around 18 months to complete, 
as long as there are no problems during construction. Mayor Taylor commented that 
it seems flooding is becoming more frequent and severe. She inquired if the 
contractors would take that into consideration and attempt to move the new 
equipment out of the flood zone. Mr. Steele stated that the contractors would 
consider this, and that Town staff is trying to use the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) funds efficiently to raise the components to get the 



WWTP back online, as soon as possible. He noted that, however, they would like to 
perform this work in a way to prepare for future funding, so they can add to it instead 
of tearing it out and starting again. Councilwoman Atkins inquired about the potential 
impact of another weather event like Hurricane Helene striking during project 
construction. Mr. Steele advised that the plant would still operate as it did for many 
years during flooding events. He noted that the main goal is to make sure the 
components do not float out of the ground again, and that Wytheville is not the only 
location with plants built in floodplains. Mayor Taylor stated that she appreciated Mr. 
Steele educating the Council on this situation at the WWTP, and for helping Town 
staff and Town's citizens. Mr. Steele noted that Town staff has been extremely 
helpful and wonderful to work with during this time.  

C. Review of quote for the Blue Light Towers 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is to review the quote for the Blue 
Light Towers. Parks and Recreation Director Shartiz stated that he attended the 
meeting to answer any questions the Council may have regarding the quote for the 
Blue Light Towers that Knightscope, Inc. has provided and to seek guidance on how 
the Council would like for Staff to move forward with this project. Vice-Mayor Johnson 
noted that she would like to move forward with the Blue Light Towers, so that they 
can be installed to enhance community safety. Councilman Hand advised that he 
would like to move forward with this project, as well. Councilwoman Atkins stated that 
she would like to take all steps necessary to have the Blue Light Towers installed at 
one time. Director Sharitz noted that the quote includes the Public Works staff 
installing the towers and that they would order the four (4) towers at one time. 
Councilwoman Pattison inquired if Director Sharitz thinks this is the best policy to go 
by, and if he feels like the Town is getting the best product for the money being 
invested. Director Sharitz advised that he feels Knightscope, Inc. is a reputable 
company, and that they have been able to provide the product that the Town was 
looking for at a cheaper rate than other companies. Councilwoman Pattison 
commented that she would like to move forward with this project. A discussion was 
held regarding the funding process for four (4) K1 Blue Light Towers in the amount of 
$46,830. Councilwoman Pattison inquired about the Verizon Annual Voice and Data 
Service Plan and if the Town uses Verizon. Director Sharitz stated the Town uses 
U.S. Cellular, however, Verizon had the best signal at Crystal Springs. Mayor Taylor 
inquired if there was a motion to approve installing four (4) K1 Blue Light Towers in 
Withers Park, Elizabeth Brown Memorial Park, Crystal Springs and at the T-Ball 
Field.  

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Atkins. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the 
motion was approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea: 
Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Atkins, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Pattison, 
Councilman Hand, Jr. 

D. Discussion regarding the installation of a proposed delineator over the 20th 
Street Bridge 
 
Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is a discussion regarding the 



installation of a proposed delineator over the 20th Street Bridge. Director of Public 
Utilities and Engineering Anderson explained that asphalt has been placed on the 
bridge, and the Town is slated to receive its final safety inspection the week of 
August 18, 2025, from Swartz and Associates. He commented that he had a 
discussion with the Bridge Inspector and Bridge Engineer for the Virginia Department 
of Transportation (VDOT), regarding the potential of installing overhead crossbars 
and vertical clearance guards on the bridge to assist in preventing overweight 
vehicles from utilizing the bridge. Director Anderson advised that VDOT feels that the 
crossbars and guards is a positive idea. He noted that this is a Town structure, and 
the Town has jurisdiction to determine what level of additional restrictions it wants, on 
top of signage for weight limits. Director Anderson explained that the VDOT signs 
regarding bridge weight limits is simply for litigation purposes. He noted that a sign 
does not restrict anything or do anything. He continued to discuss the use of the 
bridge regarding the daily traffic that is traversed across it, etc. Director Anderson 
explained that the idea of signage is to produce a situation that would dissuade large 
vehicles such as concrete trucks, fertilizer trucks, dump trucks, oversize box trucks, 
etc., from utilizing the bridge. He reiterated that VDOT indicated that signage would 
be a good idea and, potentially would approve themselves, if VDOT were the 
authority over the streets, however, since the Town holds jurisdiction over the streets, 
it has the right to add or remove whatever restrictions it wants. Director Anderson 
commented that the only sign restriction is that there cannot be anything hanging that 
could potentially fall onto the railroad tracks. He continued to discuss with the Council 
the signage available and not available for the bridge. Director Anderson advised that 
the weight restriction for the bridge is 10 tons, therefore, some type of cross guard 
over top of the bridge would be a value to seek, in order to preserve the integrity of 
the bridge. He noted that VDOT requires anything with a height restriction of fourteen 
(14) feet and five (5) inches or below to have signage. Director Anderson stated that 
VDOT also requires signage for the weight restrictions. He continued to explain to the 
Council the locations of where the signage would be posted at the appropriate 
distances from the bridge, what the signs would include, etc. Director Anderson 
advised that the 20th Street Bridge Construction Rehabilitation Project was originally 
budgeted at approximately $200,000. He stated that the Town received the final 
invoice earlier in the day, therefore, after submitting payment for the final invoice, 
there will be approximately $53,000, remaining in the project's budgeted line item, 
which would be available if the Town would like to discuss the installation of some 
protective measures for the bridge. Director Anderson discussed with the Council the 
manufacturing and delivery of the cross guards, which are installed on concrete 
pedestals. Councilman Hand inquired of Director Anderson if the $53,000, remaining 
in the project's budgeted line item would be enough to cover the installation, etc., of 
the delineators. Director Anderson stated that is correct. He commented that he 
believes that there are ample funds available in the remaining budget line item to 
seek quotes regarding the guards. Councilman Hand advised that he is in favor, and 
it sounds great. He commented that he does not see why the Council would not 
consider this, especially if the funds are available. Director Anderson commented that 
he sees it as a form of insurance, especially since the Town just spent two and a half 
years without a bridge. Director Anderson advised that he discussed this issue with 
the Town's Fire and Rescue Department, and he noted that the Department does not 
utilize the bridge, it uses US 21. He noted that the Town's Public Utility and Public 



Works Departments' small pickup trucks will not have any issue with clearance. He 
continued discussing vehicles that would/would not have issues with clearance or 
weight. Vice-Mayor Johnson stated that she thinks this is something that is much 
needed. Mayor Taylor inquired if the issue regarding the top of the bridge has been 
resolved. Director Anderson explained to the Council how this issue was resolved, 
and noted that the issue was due to final invoicing and inspection. Discussion 
continued regarding how soon the 20th Street Bridge could be opened and the 
possibility of waiting an additional four (4) weeks to reopen the bridge to receive 
correct signage, clearance guards, etc. Interim Town Manager Corvin inquired if 
Director Anderson had an estimate for the total cost to install the delineator over the 
20th Street Bridge. Director Anderson stated that he can get an estimate for the total 
cost of installing the delineator, and noted that it will not exceed the $53,369 that 
remains in the project's budgeted line item. Mayor Taylor inquired if there was a 
motion to approve the installation of the delineator over the 20th Street Bridge, not to 
exceed the budgeted amount of $53,369, and to keep the bridge closed until the 
work is complete.  

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilman Hand, Jr. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the 
motion was approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea: 
Councilman Hand, Jr., Councilwoman Pattison, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Atkins, 
Vice-Mayor Johnson.  

E. Presentation regarding a Records Management System and Mobile Data 
Terminal Upgrade at the Wytheville Police Department 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is a presentation by Deputy Police 
Chief Bryan Bard regarding a Records Management System and Mobile Data 
Terminal Upgrade at the Wytheville Police Department. Deputy Chief Bard stated that 
in April 2025, the Police Department was made aware that Wythe County was in the 
process of updating its Emergency 911 system, in order to meet current State and 
National 911 standards. He noted that this comprehensive upgrade impacts every 
law enforcement agency, fire and rescue agency and emergency service agency 
connected to each system, including the Wytheville Police Department. Deputy Chief 
Bard advised that they will proceed with receiving a contract from Southern Software. 
He stated that the total estimated cost for the Town of Wytheville's Upgrade is 
$89,992, which will be disbursed in three (3) phases. Deputy Chief Bard noted that 
30 percent is due upon signing the contract, which equals $43,402.20. He 
commented that 60 percent, which equals $31,174.40, is due upon installation of the 
equipment. Deputy Chief Bard commented that the remaining 10 percent will be due 
upon the completion of the project, and he noted that this amount will be $15,413.40. 
He stated that the projected "go live" date for the new system is January 1, 2026. 
Deputy Chief Bard noted that one benefit of switching software vendors will be the 
yearly savings. He advised that there will be a large reduction in the yearly 
maintenance fee from the Spillman Software at $36,000 per year, to the Southern 
Software’s first year fees at $12,260, and every year after at $8,010. Deputy Chief 
Bard commented that all of the Police Department's current data will be transferred to 
the new software platform, and that the Town's IT Department is aware of the 



requirements that will be used to link up with the 911 Center. Councilwoman Atkins 
inquired if the $89,992 could be split between the Police Department and the Fire 
and Rescue Department's budget. Deputy Chief Bard stated that the Fire and 
Rescue Department falls under Wythe County Emergency Services, and that the 
County, basically, takes care of this for them. Vice-Mayor Johnson inquired if there 
are any grants available that could be used toward the cost of the software system 
upgrade. Deputy Chief Bard noted that he is not aware of any available grants. 
Councilwoman Atkins commented that this is crucial for Police Department 
communication. Deputy Chief Bard stated that is correct, and if they do not 
participate in this upgrade, the Police Department will be cut off from the 911 
communication system.  

A motion was made by Councilwoman Atkins and seconded by Vice-Mayor Johnson 
to approve allocating $89,992 to upgrade the Wytheville Police Department's 
Records Management System and Mobile Data Terminal. Mayor Taylor inquired if 
there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was approved 
with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea: Vice-Mayor Johnson, 
Councilwoman Atkins, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Pattison, Councilman Hand, Jr. 

F. Town Email/Internet/Computer Training 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is Town Email/Internet/Computer 
Training by Computer Operations Manager Ron Jude. Computer Operations 
Manager Jude reviewed email scams, the benefit of sending images in multiple 
emails, how an IP4 Address is given, how an IP4 Address can set up a private 
connection, how to access meeting packages on the Town website, internet 
connection, etc. He stated that Bluetooth, radio devices, microwaves, physical 
obstacles, the number of devices around and multiple tabs being open at one time 
are all things that can cause signal issues. Computer Operations Manager Jude 
noted that a person can test an internet connection by checking an online browser at 
speedtest.net and by the VPN on laptops. He then discussed ways computers and 
devices can be reset when not working properly like shutting them down, restarting 
them, performing needed updates and clearing out the resources that have been 
used on the computer or device. The Council thanked Computer Operations Manager 
Jude for providing them with the information.  

G. Review of Ordinance No. 1455, an ordinance amending the Town Code, 
regarding a Town operated Cat Shelter 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is the review of Ordinance No. 1455, 
an ordinance amending the Town Code, regarding a Town operated Cat Shelter. 
Interim Town Manager Corvin explained that she was asked to prepare an ordinance 
to state in the Town Code that the Town would operate a Cat Shelter. She noted that 
the wording states that the Town may operate a Cat Shelter. Interim Town Manager 
Corvin commented that she knows there has been discussion regarding placing 
language into the ordinance stating that the Town shall operate a Cat Shelter, and 
that whichever language is to be placed in the ordinance is at the Council's 
discretion. She noted that she placed a revised copy of Ordinance No. 1455 at the 
Council’s seats, and it states that the Cat Shelter will be operated in accordance with 



the Town of Wytheville Cat Shelter Policy. Interim Town Manager Corvin advised that 
this ordinance is before the Council for their review. She stated that Ordinance No. 
1455 will be presented to the Council for adoption at the August 25, Town Council 
meeting. Councilman Hand noted that he would like to look at other communities and 
what they have in place regarding a Cat Shelter Policy. He commented that he thinks 
this ordinance needs to be more specific and in depth. Interim Town Manager Corvin 
advised that, normally, a policy is not included in with the Code. She commented that 
the Code would reference the policy, and that the policy would be recorded in a 
different location. Interim Town Manager Corvin stated that Staff can contact other 
localities and see if a draft Cat Shelter Policy can be prepared to go with this Code 
change. Councilman Hand advised that he, also, would like to work with the Town's 
Animal Control Officers (ACO) to see what their opinion is and what they would like to 
have included in a Cat Shelter Policy. Mayor Taylor inquired if there were any other 
questions or comments regarding this matter. Councilwoman Pattison discussed her 
understanding of the definition of a public animal shelter and her concerns regarding 
the County needing to be responsible and maintain an animal shelter for cats and 
dogs. She noted that the Town has allowed the County to only take care of dogs 
when it is the County’s responsibility to establish and maintain a public animal 
shelter. Councilwoman Pattison stated that she believes a public animal shelter is for 
cats and dogs, however, that is just her opinion. Councilwoman Pattison inquired of 
Police Chief Hash regarding if the Town's ACOs pick up dogs, as well as cats. Police 
Chief Hash stated that they do pick up dogs, and that they do have access to the 
Wythe County Dog Shelter. Councilwoman Atkins inquired if Wythe County has 
assisted the Town in the past with after hour calls, inclement weather conditions, etc. 
Police Chief Hash noted that Wythe County has assisted the Town with these types 
of issues, in the past. Interim Town Manager Corvin advised that Staff will bring 
Ordinance No. 1455 back to the Council, at a later date.   

H. Review of quote for timeclocks for Town facilities 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is the review of a quote for 
timeclocks for Town facilities. Interim Town Manager Corvin stated that there has 
been discussion about the possibility of placing timeclocks in all the Town facilities. 
She noted that Director of Human Resources Heldreth provided her with a copy of a 
price quote for timeclocks, if the Council would like to consider placing them in all 
Town facilities. Interim Town Manager Corvin advised that this is another unbudgeted 
expense, so the Council may not desire to move forward with this at this time. 
Councilwoman Atkins inquired if the timeclocks would help cut down on issues that 
Staff has had with timesheets. Interim Town Manager Corvin stated that employees 
would clock in with a badge as soon as they enter the facility and their time would 
automatically populate onto their timesheet. She noted that the timeclock would help 
the larger departments that have to sign in and physically enter employees’ time into 
the timesheet. Mayor Taylor commented that she thinks the timeclocks will be a good 
thing to consider, however, she would like to consider them in the next budget year. 
Councilwoman Atkins inquired if this would help with issues regarding employees 
clocking in across the Town. Interim Town Manager Corvin stated that is correct. She 
advised that only a supervisor will be able to correct an employee’s timesheet, if they 
forget to clock in or clock out. Councilman Hand stated that he is not interested in 



timeclocks, at the moment. He noted that he, personally, has not heard enough 
concern from Human Resources to justify putting in these timeclocks. Councilman 
Hand commented that he did not want to send Town employees a message that 
makes them think they are not trusted. Interim Town Manager Corvin advised that, 
currently, the Recreation Center is the only Town facility that utilizes a timeclock. 
Vice-Mayor Johnson stated that she does not have an issue with the timeclocks, and 
that she can make it clear that she does not have any trust issues. She noted that 
she thinks things need to be done properly and in order. Mayor Taylor commented 
that she thinks more discussion needs to be held regarding this topic going forward 
before next budget year. Discussion continued regarding the Council's opinion on 
installing timeclocks at each Town facility. Interim Town Manager Corvin stated that 
she would bring this topic back to the Council in January 2026, to further discuss 
including timeclocks in the next fiscal year budget. 

I. Review of current Electronic Meeting Participation Policy 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is the review of the current Electronic 
Meeting Participation Policy. Interim Town Manager Corvin stated that the Council 
adopted this policy, which allows them to participate in meetings electronically. She 
noted that she believes it is now a State law to adopt an Electronic Meeting 
Participation Policy, annually. Interim Town Manager Corvin advised that this will be 
placed on the August 25, Town Council meeting agenda to be considered for 
adoption. Councilwoman Atkins inquired of Town Attorney Cassell if he could explain 
the Closed Meeting section of the policy for Council members who are to participate 
remotely. Town Attorney Cassell stated that the policy requires the remote participant 
to maintain confidentiality. There being no further discussion, Mayor Taylor 
proceeded with the agenda. 

J. Council Member Time 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is Council Member Time. She 
inquired if Vice-Mayor Johnson had anything she would like to discuss during Council 
Member Time. Vice-Mayor Johnson stated that the bench dedication in memory of 
Lieutenant Clemons will be held on August 29, 2025, at 1:00 p.m., at the Wytheville 
Police Department. Police Chief Hash noted that the Wytheville Police Department 
will, also, have Sergeant Tommy Lester's Retirement Ceremony on August 29, 2025, 
at 11:00 a.m. He commented that this will be Sergeant Lester's last day. Councilman 
Hand inquired of Interim Town Manager Corvin if Sergeant Lester will receive a 
retirement resolution from the Town. Interim Town Manager Corvin advised that, 
usually, the Human Resources Department presents all of the retirement resolutions 
to Town retirees at one time.  

Mayor Taylor inquired if Councilwoman Atkins had anything she would like to discuss 
during Council Member Time. Councilwoman Atkins stated that she did not have 
anything to discuss during Council Member Time.  

Mayor Taylor stated that she did not have anything to discuss during Council Member 
Time.  



Mayor Taylor inquired if Councilwoman Pattison had anything she would like to 
discuss during Council Member Time. Councilwoman Pattison stated that, for the 
record, please note that she joined the meeting at 4:20 p.m. 

Mayor Taylor inquired if Councilman Hand had anything he would like to discuss 
during Council Member Time. Councilman Hand stated that he did not have anything 
to discuss to during Council Member Time. 

K. Closed Meeting pursuant to Section 2.2-3711 (A.) (1.) Discussion regarding 
personnel issues 

Mayor Taylor advised that it would now be necessary for the Council to go into a 
Closed Meeting pursuant to Section 2.2-3711 (A.) (1.) Discussion regarding 
personnel issues. She inquired if there was a motion to go into a Closed Meeting.  

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Atkins. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the 
motion was approved with the following voting results: Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor, 
Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison, Councilwoman Atkins. Voting Nay: 
Councilman Hand, Jr. (6:23 p.m.) Councilman Hand did not attend the Closed 
Meeting. 

L. Certification of Closed Meeting 

Mayor Taylor advised that it would now be necessary to certify the Closed Meeting. 
She noted that it would also be necessary to reconvene into open session. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was a motion to certify the Closed Meeting held pursuant to 
Section 2.2-3711 (A.) (1.) Discussion regarding personnel issues and that only public 
business matters that were identified in the motion convening the Closed Meeting 
were heard, discussed or considered by the Council.  

Motion made by Councilwoman Pattison, Seconded by Councilwoman Atkins. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the 
motion was approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea: 
Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Atkins, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Pattison. 
(7:31 p.m.)  

3. RE: ADJOURNMENT  

There being no further business to be discussed, the Work Session was adjourned. (7:32 
p.m.) 
 

                 
      Sharon G. Corvin, CMC, Interim Town Manager 
 

          
Brandi N. Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk 



9-A



WYTHEVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL 

 

AGENDA ITEM 
INFORMATION 

 Meeting Date: August 25, 2025 

 Subject: George Wythe High School Homecoming Parade 

SUMMARY: 

Please find attached a request from George Wythe High School for traffic control to conduct 

their Homecoming Parade on Wednesday, September 17, 2025, at 6:00 p.m. The Safety and 

Events Committee has reviewed the request and recommends that it be approved by the Town 

Council. Assistant Town Manager Elaine Holeton will answer any questions the Council may 

have about this request. 

Recommended Action 

Action to approve the request of George Wythe High School for traffic control to conduct their 

Homecoming Parade on Wednesday, September 17, 2025m at 6:00 p.m. will require a motion 

and vote by the Town Council. 

 

 

 

G:\COUNCIL\Agenda Info\2025\082525\Agenda Info - GWHS Homecoming Parade.docx 























9-B



WYTHEVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL 

 

AGENDA ITEM 
INFORMATION 

 Meeting Date: August 25, 2025 

 Subject: Appointments – Wytheville Redevelopment and Housing 
Authority 

SUMMARY: 

The term of Sherrie Parks on the Wytheville Redevelopment and Housing Authority expires 

September 8, 2025, and Ms. Parks is eligible for reappointment. She has advised that she would 

like to be reappointed to the Authority, if the Council so desires. This reappointment would be 

for a four year term that expires September 8, 2029. 

The term of Mr. Jack Quesenberry to the Wytheville Redevelopment and Housing Authority 

expires September 8, 2025. Mr. Quesenberry is not eligible for reappointment. Please find 

enclosed two applications for consideration of appointment to the Authority. As the Council may 

recall, the Town Council voted several years ago to not hold Meet and Greet Sessions with 

applicants for the Housing Authority. This appointment would be for a four year term expiring 

September 8, 2029. 

Recommended Action 

Action to approve the reappointment of Sherrie Parks and the appointment of a new member to 

the Wytheville Redevelopment and Housing Authority will require a motion and vote by the Town 

Council. 

 

G:\COUNCIL\Agenda Info\2025\082525\Agenda Info - WRHA Reappointment and Appointment.docx 



















 

 

 

   9-C 

 



WYTHEVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL 

 

AGENDA ITEM 
INFORMATION 

 Meeting Date: August 25, 2025 

 Subject: Appointment – Wytheville Tree Advisory Committee 

SUMMARY: 

There is a vacancy on the Wytheville Tree Advisory Committee due to the resignation of James 

Cohen. Please find attached an application for consideration of appointment to this Committee. 

The Town Council could make the appointment at this meeting, or they could schedule a Meet 

and Greet Session for September 8, 2025, at 5:45 p.m. If the Council desires to make the 

appointment at this meeting, it would be for the unexpired term of Mr. Cohen (term expires May 

14, 2027), and the appointee would be eligible for reappointment at that time. 

Interim Town Manager Sherry Corvin will answer any questions the Town Council has about this 

appointment. 

Recommended Action 

Action to approve the appointment of a member to the Wytheville Tree Advisory Committee or 

to set a Meet and Greet Session for September 8, 2025, at 5:45 p.m. will require a motion and 

vote of the Town Council. 

 

G:\COUNCIL\Agenda Info\2025\082525\Agenda Info - WRHA Reappointment and Appointment.docx 











 

 

 

   9-D 
 



WYTHEVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL 

 

AGENDA ITEM 
INFORMATION 

 Meeting Date: August 25, 2025 

 Subject: Appointment – Wytheville Recreation Commission 

SUMMARY: 

There is, currently, a vacancy on the Wytheville Recreation Commission for a youth member. 

This appointment is a one year appointment that expires August 1, 2026. Please find enclosed 

one application for consideration of appointment to this position. Interim Town Manager Sherry 

Corvin will answer any questions from the Council concerning this appointment.  

Recommended Action 

Action to approve the appointment of a youth member to the Wytheville Recreation Commission 

will require a motion and vote of the Town Council. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

G:\COUNCIL\Agenda Info\2025\082525\Agenda Info - Recreation Commission Youth Appointment.docx 











 

 

 

   9-E 

 



WYTHEVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL 

 

AGENDA ITEM 
INFORMATION 

 Meeting Date: August 25, 2025 

 Subject: Appointment – Wytheville Economic Development Authority 
(WEDA) 

SUMMARY: 

The term of Zach Cooley on the Wytheville Economic Development Authority expired December 

12, 2024. Please find enclosed one application for consideration of appointment to the Authority. 

The term for this appointment expires December 12, 2028. Interim Town Manager Sherry Corvin 

will answer any questions that the Council has about this appointment.  

Recommended Action 

Action to approve an appointment to the Wytheville Economic Development Authority (WEDA) 

requires a motion and vote by the Town Council. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

G:\COUNCIL\Agenda Info\2025\082525\Agenda Info - WEDA Appointment.docx 











9-F


